CITY OF NORTH POLE

Alaska

MONDAY, JUNE 19, 2017
Committee of the whole 6:30 p.m.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 p.m.

MAYOR CITY CLERK
Bryce Ward — Borough Rep Judy Binkley
888-4444 488-8583

COUNCIL MEMBERS
Kevin McCarthy- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 590-0800

Avery Thompson 388-5351
David Skipps 750-5106
Santa Claus 388-3836
Thomas McGhee — Mayor Pro Tem 455-0010

Doug Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem  322-3133

1.  Call to Order/Roll Call

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag
3. Invocation

4.  Approval of the Agenda

5. Approval of the Minutes

6. Communications from the Mayor
. Presentation of 2016 draft audit by Kohler, Schmitt, and Hutchison

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor

8.  Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City
Clerk

9. Ongoing Projects Report

10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen)



11. Old Business
a. Ordinance 17-17, An ordinance of the North Pole City Council amending Title 2, Chapter
2.36.470, Personnel Code, Pay — F. Professional Development, within the North Pole Fire
Department.

12. New Business
a. Approval of tuition reimbursement for Officer Emily Gibson of the North Pole Police
Department in the amount of $576.
b. Authorization to use a Request for Proposals to solicit construction contractors for the water
system extension project.
c. Resolution 17-13, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council designating City official’s
authorization to sign on City of North Pole accounts.

13. Council Comments
14. Adjournment

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired
individuals. The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service. All such
requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter. All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.
These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business
hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The
City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.



Regular City Council Meeting
June 5, 2017

7:00 p.m.

Committee of the Whole —6:30 P.M.
Regular City Council Meeting — 7:00 P.M.

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, June 5, 2017 in the Council
Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, June 5, 2017 to order at
7:00 p.m.

There were present: Absent/Excused
Mr. McCarthy — Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem Excused

Mr. Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem

Mr. Thompson

Mr. McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem

Mr. Claus

Mr. Skipps

Mayor Ward -

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG
Led by Mayor Ward

INVOCATION
Invocation was given by Mr. Isaacson

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mr. McGhee moved to approve the agenda of June 5, 2017
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson

DISCUSSION
None

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items:

Old Business:
a. Ordinance 17-13, an Ordinance to amend codes associated with the City of North Pole’s Storm
Water Management Ordinances, Chapter 12.24 — lllicit Discharge Detection and Elimination;

Chapter 15.66 — Construction Site Storm Water Runoff; and Chapter 15.74 — Post-Construction
Storm Water Management.

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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Regular City Council Meeting
June 5, 2017

7:00 p.m.

Ordinance 17-14, An Ordinance to incur $303,000 debt from a ow-interest Alaska Department
of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) loan for the purpose of constructing an extension to
the wastewater treatment plant discharge sewer main in response to an ADEC Notice of
Violation.

Ordinance 17-15, an Ordinance to allow multiple water meters at properties with multiple
occupancies and to allow a single customer sewer service line at properties with multiple
occupancies.

Ordinance 17-16, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend the 2017 Jag/Byrne
grant to purchase an undercover vehicle for use by North Pole Police Department.

New Business:

a.

C.

€.

Approval of liquor license transfer from First Security Investments, dba Pagoda Chinese
Restaurant to Steven & Julie Moody, dba Moody Brews BBQ & Catering.

Fairbanks North Star Borough and City of North Pole Emergency Medical
Services/Ambulance contract renewal and amendment #2.

Approval of the North Pole City Council to write-off uncollectable utility debts totaling
$7,860.19.

Resolution 17-12, a Resolution of the City of North Pole in support of submitting a kickstarter
competitive award to the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation to install energy efficiency
technologies in City Hall.

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson

Discussion

None

On the amendment

PASSED

Yes: 6— McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward

No: 0

Absent: 1- McCarthy

On the Agenda as amended

Discussion

None

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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PASSED

Yes: 6— McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward
No: 0

Absent: 1- McCarthy

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. McGhee moved to approve the Minutes of May 15, 2017
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson

Discussion
None

PASSED

Yes: 6— McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward
No: 0

Absent: 1- McCarthy

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR

e Arcadis/Agnew:: Beck Growth Management Plan
John Dunham and Shelly Wade introduced themselves to the council
Purpose of growth management process — understand given new resident population (~3500, 1300
new personal). What weaknesses does this cause in infrastructure and what opportunities are there.
What is the impact and how are needs met or not met.

e Proclamations
Kimberly Williams the May student of the month was recognized by Mayor Ward

The Violations Committee will be meeting before the first meeting of every month in the
Council Chambers starting at 530pm. The public is welcome to attend; we are hoping to have
things wrapped up by August.

4™ of July Meetings are scheduled for the following dates until the event:, , June 12, June 26"
All meetings will be at City Hall at 6pm and go till 7pm. The public is welcome to attend. We
are considering the High School as a possible festival location. We have chosen “My Town” as
the theme this year, based on Montgomery Gentry’s song .

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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Tomorrow is the follow up housing summit from 2-5 pm at the Pipeline Training Center, if you
are interested in taking advantage of the opportunities for residential construction in the North
Pole areas | would encourage you to attend.

It is with heavy hearts that we remember Buzz Otis this weekend at North Pole Worship Center
from 4-6pm. My Heart and prayers go out to his family as they deal with this tragic loss.

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR

None

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK

Fire Dept., Chief Coon

Chief Coon out of town

May 20" was the open house, same day as Cruising with Santa and had a great turnout so
next year the event will coincide again.

6 staff members have been going through apparatus training school and they all did well and
passed the hands on practical

Currently doing the annual pump testing

Police Dept., Chief Dutra

Minutes

Articles on large drug bust from Tok. This involved SDEU. $30k seized along with guns
and drugs.

Pursuits through City. Had one on St. Nicholas at 80 mph. Had second just outside city.
Ofc. Phil McBroom was awarded Officer of the Year by APOA — Prestigious Award —
Grats. Also NPPD Officer of the year.

Jeromey Lindhag was Employee of the Year for NPPD

Parade Security will be heightened for July 4™ parade.

Door wiring is progressing.

We have moved ahead with Gundersen Painting to paint our building.

Electric Hot water heater repaired cost $2300

Cars should be in Anchorage next week or so.

I leave for Sitka for Officer Tibbetts graduation.

Hosting IPCC on June 30. Collaboration event.

Medals and Decoration meeting occurring tomorrow. First of many.

June 5, 2017
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Memorial Park flag is being drawn up. Working on flag for park.

Worked Crusin with Santa gave away a lot of items to kids and sold a lot of tickets.
Also Mike Welch attended the Vernon Nash car show sold tickets.

Need help selling tickets. Will distribute when meeting is done.

Finance, Tricia Fogarty
e Thanked council for reaching out to KSH on their request fill out the form regarding if they
suspected any fraud.
e They are wrapping up the audit this week.
e Received new a new credit card processor and saved it has saved the City $1000 so far
fees.

Director of City Services, Bill Butler
Building Department
e One new building permit issued-shop building.
e Four new residential permit applications submitted: Tri-plex, two 4-plexs and single
family home. One institutional permit application for plumbing work at Middle School.

Public Works

e Resolution before Council for a $10,000 grant to install LED lighting in City Hall and to
put timers on the head-bolt heater plug-ins.

e Flowers planted in roundabouts and planters.

e Second reading of an ordinance updating Storm Water Management ordinances

e Community Development Block Grant for Santa’s Senior Center Remodel Project
formally authorized June 1, 2017.
= Start of the project delayed waiting for US Army Corps of Engineer determination

that the Senior Center was not a wetland.

Utility Department

e Sulfolane lawsuit settlement agreement.
= ADEC approved the use of HDPE pipes in water system extension.
= Design phase for water system extension has achieved 65% level

e Second reading for ADEC loan offer for $303,000 (part of the approved $2 million
ACWEF loan) for the sewer outfall project is before the Council this evening.

e Second reading of ordinance to clarify Utility code related multi-metering at properties
with multiple living units is before the Council this evening.

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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e Recommendation to write-off uncollectable Utility debt before Council.

Natural Gas Utility Board
e There have been no IGU meetings since the last City Council meeting

Borough Representative

e Odinance 2017-20, FNSB budget was passed on May 18". The Borough is up against the
Tax Cap.

e The Next regular Assembly meeting will be June 8™

City Clerk’s Office, Kathy Weber
e The City Council appointed a new City Clerk, Judy Binkley. Ms. Binkley will take office
on Wednesday, June 14™. Mrs. Weber will be in and out of the office until her official
retirement on Friday, June 30,

ONGOING PROJECTS
e None

CITIZENS COMMENTS — (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen)
None

OLD BUSINESS
Consented Agenda

NEW BUSINESS

ORDINANCE 17-17, AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING
TITLE 2 CHAPTER 2.36.470, PERSONNEL CODE, PAY - F. PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT, WITHIN THE NORTH POLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Deputy Chief Heineken gave clarification on Ordinance 17-17. He stated that it was a housekeeping
ordinance.

Public comment
None

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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Mr. Isaacson moved to introduce an advance Ordinance 17-17, an Ordinance of the North Pole City
Council amending Title 2, Chapter 2.36.470, Personnel Code, Pay — F. Professional Development,
within the North Pole Fire Department.

Seconded by Mr. McGhee

Discussion
Mr. Isaacson

PASSED
Yes: 6— McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward

No: 0
Absent: 1- McCarthy

EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Modification of the existing contingent fee agreement with CSG, Inc.

Mr. McGhee moved to Adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the modification of the
existing contingent fee agreement with CSG, Inc.

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson
PASSED Unanimously — Council went into Executive Session at 8:03 p.m.
Mayor Ward brought the meeting back to order at 8:54.

Mr. McGhee move to authorize Mayor Ward to sign the modified contingent fee agreement
with CSG, Inc.

Seconded by Mr. Isaacson
PASSED
Yes: 6- McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward

No: 0
Absent: 1- McCarthy

COUNCIL COMMENTS

None

Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:56 p.m.

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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Seconded by Mr. Isaacson
The regular meeting of Monday, June 5, 2017 adjourned at 8:57 p.m.

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council
on Monday, June 19, 2017.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Judy Binkley
North Pole City Clerk

Minutes
June 5, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Pole, Alaska, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City of North Pole, Alaska’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of North Pole, Alaska, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The prior year partial comparative
information has been derived from the City of North Pole’s 2015 financial statements and, in our report dated
October 24, 2016, we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the PERS Pension Liability
information on pages 38-39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of North Pole, Alaska’s basic financial statement. The accompanying Schedule of State Financial
Assistance and the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
Schedule of State Financial Assistance is required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement
for State Single Audits.

The accompanying Schedule of State Financial Assistance and the combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of State Financial Assistance and the combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules as listed in the table of contents are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June XX, 2017, on our
consideration of the City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing on internal controls over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fairbanks, Alaska
June XX, 2017
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2016

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equity $ 2,513,104 995,492 3,508,596
Receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $45,959 456,238 463,608 919,846
Special assessments, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $25,520 543,749 - 543,749
Restricted cash - 115,235 115,235
Capital Assets
Land and construction in progress 370,316 4,131,455 4,501,771
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 3,138,307 17,465,944 20,604,251
Total assets 7,021,714 23,171,734 30,193,448
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOUR!
Total deferred outflows of resources 729,461 97,423 826,884
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 7,751,175 23,269,157 31,020,332
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 111,720 133,181 244,901
Accrued liabilities 127,797 36,462 164,259
Healthcare payable 80,808 - 80,808
Customer deposits - 40,052 40,052
Unearned revenue 15,000 18,793 33,793
Due within one year
Accrued vacation and sick leave 192,126 30,521 222,647
Bonds and notes payable 84,605 64,553 149,158
Due in more than one year
Notes payable - 1,436,851 1,436,851
General obligation bond 685,000 - 685,000
Special assessment bonds 33,518 - 33,518
Revenue bonds - - -
Unamortized bond premium 53,059 - 53,059
PERS pension liability-employer portion 5,024,604 671,063 5,695,667
Total liabilities 6,408,237 2,431,476 8,839,713
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
56,008 7,480 63,488
Total deferred inflows of resources 56,008 7,480 63,488
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,652,441 20,095,998 22,748,439
Restricted for:
Public safety 72,956 - 72,956
Unrestricted (1,438,467) 734,203 (704,264)
Total net position 1,286,930 20,830,201 22,117,132
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position $ 7,751,175 23,269,157 31,020,332

See notes to financial statements.

-6-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2016

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 2,716,948

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets and related
accumulated depreciation are as follows:

Land, land improvements and construction in process $ 370,316
Buildings 4,020,757
Office furniture and equipment 1,521,695
Vehicles and equipment 3,531,024
Infrastructure 1,733,206
Accumulated depreciation (7,668,373)
3,508,623
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. These assets
consist of deferred assessments receivable. 474,690
Long-term liabilities related to the PERS pension liability are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
fund liabilites. Deferred inflows and deferred outflows recorded
in relation to these pension liabilities are also not reported as fund assets
and liabilities.
These liabilities, deferred inflows and deferred outflows consist of :
PERS pension liabilities - employer portion (5,024,604)
Deferred outflows of resources 729,461
Deferred inflows of resources (56,008)
(4,351,151)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as fund liabilities.
These liabilities consist of:
Bonds payable $  (803,123)
Unamortized bond premium (53,059)
Accrued interest on bonds (13,864)
Accrued leave (192,126)
(1,062,181)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,286,930

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended December 31, 2016

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (214,191)

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, on the
Statement of Activities, depreciation expense is recognized to allocate
the cost of these items over their estimated useful lives. This is the
amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays. (375,691)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the amount of
the decrease in deferred assessments. (93,710)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal

of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of

governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has an effect on

net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance

costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,

whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement

of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

treatment of long-term debt and related items:
Payments on bonds $ 78934
Payments on capital leases 43,225

Amortization of bond premium 5,895
128,054

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. This amount represents the expense recorded in
relation to the change in the PERS pension liability and the related deferred
inflows and outflows. (919,886)

Interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis
of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This amount is the
increase in accrued interest payable. 651

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. This amount represents the net increase in
accrued leave (7,241)

Changes in net position of governmental activities $ (1,482,014

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

Revenues:

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services - ambulance service
Intergovernmental:

Federal government

State of Alaska
Investment income
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Debt service:
Capital lease principal
Capital lease interest
PERS on-behalf
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Transfers in
Net other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Beginning fund balance

Ending fund balance

See notes to financial statements.

Year ended December 31, 2016

DRAFT 6-14-17

Variance
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
4,254,499 4,177,829 4,147,437 (30,392)
31,250 31,250 31,263 13
511,000 515,375 493,940 (21,435)
82,000 82,795 78,556 (4,239)
221,000 182,636 276,197 93,561
2,750 4,235 3,322 913)
152,000 193,564 190,048 (3,516)
5,254,499 5,187,684 5,220,763 33,079
763,222 854,959 841,148 13,811
3,897,249 3,891,104 3,806,358 84,746
633,136 636,136 541,605 94,531
- - 42,696 (42,696)
_ - 6,596 (6,596)
- - 124,291 (124,291)
5,293,607 5,382,199 5,362,694 19,505
(39,108) (194,515) (141,931) 52,584
(24,500) (194,109) - 194,109
63,608 417,253 30,000 (387,253)
39,108 223,144 30,000 (193,144)
- 28,629 (111,931) (140,560)
2,169,589
2,057,658
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2016

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equity
Receivables
Grants
Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

Restricted cash
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Unearned revenues
Current portion of bond and note payable
Total current liabilities

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

BOND AND NOTES PAYABLE, less current portion

Total liabilities

PERS PENSION LIABILITY- EMPLOYER PORTION

DEFERRED INFLOWS

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See notes to financial statements.

NET POSITION
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$ 995,492

268,920

240,647

(45,959)
1,459,100

52,137,557
(30,540,158)
21,597,399

115,235

97,423

$ 23,269,157

133,181
66,983
40,052
18,793
64,553

323,562

1,436,851
1,760,413

671,063

7,480

20,095,998

734,203
20,830,201

5 __ 23260157
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Year ended December 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES - charges for services $ 1,584,728
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water
Salaries and benefits 235,946
Other operating expenses 228,297
Depreciation 603,031
1,067,274
Sewer
Salaries and benefits 346,454
Other operating expenses 296,773
Depreciation 1,119,915
1,763,142
Operating loss (1,245,688)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Alaska Clean Water Loan debt forgiveness -
State of Alaska PERS relief 16,600

State of Alaska PERS on-behalf payment (16,600)

Interest expense (32,422)

(32,422)

Loss before contributions and transfers (1,278,110)

Interfund transfer in (out) (7,500)
Capital contributions 1,840,971
Changes in net position 555,361
Beginning net postion 20,274,840
Ending net position $ 20,830,201

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds of long term debt
Capital contributions received
Payment of revenue bond principal and interest
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, January 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, December 31

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year:
Cash and cash equity
Restricted cash

Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on displosal of assets
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Unearned revenues

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See notes to financial statements.
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$ 1,404,121
(706,308)
(298,366)

399,447

(7,500)
(7,500)

(2,664,752)
99,543
1,840,971

(95,953)

(820,191)

(428,244)
1,538,971
$ 1,110,727

995,492
115,235

$___ 1110727
(1,245,688)
1,722,946
91,351
(180,607)
21,323
19,910
5,218
(35,006)

S___ 399447
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity - The City of North Pole, Alaska (City) was incorporated as a Home Rule Charter on
January 16, 1953, under the provisions of Alaska Statute, Title 29, as amended. The legislative branch of the
government is comprised of a mayor and six council members. Individual departments are under the
direction of the mayor, with the exception of the city clerk, who is under the direction of the City Council.
There are no other entities considered for possible inclusion in the City’s financial reporting entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the
City. In general, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the
double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on
fees and charges to external parties.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Sales taxes, property taxes and other items not included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only to the extent they have matured.

-16-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Property and sales taxes, charges for services, leases, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
received by the government.

The City reports the following major funds:

Major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be reported in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the proceeds from water and sewer special assessments and
the payment of general obligation and special assessment debt principal and interest.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the City’s various capital improvement projects
that are not included in the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

Major proprietary fund:
The Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City water and
sewer systems.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. [Exceptions to this general rule are allocated administration fees and charges between the
enterprise funds and the various other funds and departments. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. In
addition, general revenues include all taxes, investment income, and State of Alaska entitlement revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and
Sewer Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
Enterprise Fund include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Budgets - The annual City operating budget for the subsequent year is prepared by management eight weeks
before the end of the current fiscal year. The budget is then submitted to the City Council for review and
approval. Amendments to the budget can occur any time during the fiscal year through City Council
action. The legal level of budgetary control for all funds is at the function or activity level. Unencumbered
funds remaining at the end of the current fiscal year may be reallocated for the purposes set forth in the
budget proposal. The Capital Projects Fund has project-length budgets.

-17-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

An annual budget for the General Fund is legally adopted on the same modified accrual basis used to
reflect actual revenues and expenditures.

Annual budgets are also adopted for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. However, generally accepted
accounting principles do not require the adoption of budgets for Enterprise Funds, and budgetary
comparisons are not included for this fund since the measurement focus is upon determination of net income
and financial position.

Central Treasury - A central treasury is used to account for cash from the funds of the City to maximize
interest income. Investments are stated at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Water and Sewer Enterprise
Fund considers all cash accounts to be cash and cash equivalents. The central treasury, which holds cash
and investments, is used essentially as a cash management pool by each fund.

Interfund Receivables and Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either "due to / from other funds" (i.e.,
the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to / from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to / from other
funds". Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

Receivables - In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales taxes, special
assessment receivables, and state and federal grants. Business-type activities report fees for water and sewer
services and other receivables from customers as their major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals for
sales taxes, special assessment receivables, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues, since
they are usually both measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions measurable but not available are
deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis, but not deferred in
the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material
receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Fees for water and sewer
services and other receivables from customers compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of
accounts receivable.

-18-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues - In applying the measurable and available concepts to grants
and intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual
programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one,
monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts are considered "earned";
therefore, revenues are recognized based upon expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with
prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or
earlier if the measurable and available criteria are met.

Interfund Transactions - During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions
between funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets,
and service debt. The accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers.
Operating subsidies are also recorded as transfers.

Compensated Absences - The City allows employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave
benefits. All vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental fund financial
statements only if they have matured (e.g., the employee has terminated employment).

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks, etc.) have been capitalized on a prospective basis. Capital
assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value, the price that would be paid to acquire
an asset with equivalent service potential.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend the useful life of the asset are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 15 - 37 years
Vehicles 5 - 20 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years
Infrastructure 20 years
Sewer and water system 20 - 30 years

-19-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Unearned Grant Revenue - Amounts received from grantor agencies, which are restricted as to use and have
not been expended for the intended uses are shown as unearned revenue.

Long-Term Debt - In the government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

Fund Equity - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, fund equity is classified as
“net position”. Net position is further classified as invested in capital assets, restricted funds, or unrestricted
funds.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund equity as “fund balance”, and aggregate
amounts for five classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these
resources.

Nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

The spendable portion of the fund balances comprises the remaining four classifications: restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a)
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal resolutions, or ordinances of the City Council - the government's highest level of
decision making authority Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City
Council removes the specified requirement by taking the same type of action imposing the commitment. This
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City's "intent" to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council and Mayor have
the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances include all
remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds, other than the
General Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It is
also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use

externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and unassigned -
in order as needed.

-20-



DRAFT 6-14-17

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for expenditures are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund. = Any encumbrances outstanding at
year end are reported as appropriate constraints of fund balances if they meet the definitions and criteria as
outlined above.

Deferred inflows and outflows- A deferred outflow represents the consumption of the government's net
assets or fund balance that is applicable to a future reporting period. A deferred inflow represents the
acquisition of net assets or fund balance that is applicable to a future reporting period. For example,
revenues that have been earned but are not yet available in the governmental funds are now reported as
deferred inflows.

Pension Plan - Substantially all employees of the City participate in the Public Employees' Retirement
System (PERS) administered by the State of Alaska.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses/expenditures, and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has passed several new
accounting standards with upcoming implementation dates. Management has not fully evaluated the potential
effects of these statements, but believes GASB Statement 75 will result in the biggest reporting change.

GASB 75 -Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits other than Pensions- Effective
for year-end December 31, 2018. This standard will improve the usefulness of information about
postemployment benefits.

GASB 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations - Effective for year-end December 31, 2019. This standard
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs), such as sewage
treatment plants.

GASB 85 - Omnibus 2017 - Effective for year-ended December 31, 2018. This statement addresses practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.

21-



CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

2. CASH AND CASH EQUITY

DRAFT 6-14-17

The City of North Pole utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's
portion of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet as "cash and cash equity."

Investment Policy - The City does not have formal policies governing the types of investments it is

authorized to hold.

Reconciliation of Deposit and Investment Balances - The following is a reconciliation of the City's deposit
and investment balances to the financial statements as of December 31, 2016.

Bank deposits and certificates $ 3,623,631
Other 200
$__3.623.831

Reconciliation of cash and cash equity to the basic financial statements:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
Cash and cash equity $ 2,513,104 995,492 3,508,596
Restricted cash - 115,235 115,235
$ 2,513,104 1,110,727 3,623,831

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
government's deposits may not be returned to it. To limit its exposure to custodial credit risk, City

policy requires that all deposits be fully insured or collateralized.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Deletions Balance
January 1, and December 31,
2016 Additions Transfers 2016
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 5,000 - - 5,000
Land and land improvements 365,316 - - 365,316
Total assets not being depreciated 370,316 - - 370,316
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,020,757 - - 4,020,757
Office furniture and equipment 1,991,260 35,265 504,830 1,521,695
Vehicles and equipment 3,931,101 140,107 540,184 3,531,024
Infrastructure 1,733,206 - - 1,733,206
Total assets being depreciated 11,676,324 175,372 1,045,014 10,806,682
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 2,948,833 107,041 - 3,055,874
Office furniture and equipment 1,485,285 103,043 480,137 1,108,191
Vehicles and equipment 2,973,547 184,167 500,639 2,657,075
Infrastructure 760,575 86,660 - 847,235
Total accumulated depreciation 8,168,240 480,911 980,776 7,668,375
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 3,508,084 (305,539) 64,238 3,138,307
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 3,878,400 (305,539) 64,238 3,508,623
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements 507,815 - - 507,815
Construction in progress 058,888 2,664,748 - 3,623,636
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 1,466,703 2,664,748 - 4,131,451
Capital assets being depreciated:
Sewer and water system 46,534,418 - - 46,534,418
Machinery and equipment 1,471,685 - - 1,471,685
Total assets being depreciated 48,006,103 - - 48,006,103
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Sewer and water system 28,081,848 1,640,205 - 29,722,053
Machinery and equipment 735,363 82,739 - 818,102
Total accumulated depreciation 28,817,211 1,722,944 - 30,540,155
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 19,188,892 (1,722,944) - 17,465,948
Business-type activity capital assets, net $__ 20,655,595 941,804 - 21,597,399
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS, CONTINUED
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 50,760
Public safety 283,819
Public works 137,867
Community services 8,465

Total depreciation - governmental activities $ 480,911

Business-type activities

Water 603,031
Sewer 1,119,915
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,722,946

4. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2016 Additions Retired 2016 One Year
Governmental activities

General Obligations Refinding Bonds -

$835,000 2012 Series 2 bonds, due in

annual installments of $5,000 to $100,000

through September 1, 2025; plus variable

interest at 2 percent to 5 percent. $ 820,000 - 65,000 755,000 70,000
Special Assessment Bonds -

$300,000 2002 utility special assessment

bonds, due in annual intallments of $16,890

through June 20, 2019; including interest at

4.75 percent. 62,049 - 13,926 48,123 14,605
Capital Lease

Obligation for a fire pumper truck, payable in

annual installments of $46,944 through 2016

including interest at 4.615 percent. 43,225 - 43225 - -
Accrued leave 184,885 262,004 254,763 192,126 192,126

Total governmental activities 1,110,159 262,004 376,914 995,249 276,731
Unamortized bond permium 58,954 5,895 53,059

§ L1613 = 1048308
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4. LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED

Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2016 Additions Retired 2016 One Year

Business-type activities
Revenue bonds -

$647,600 1998 utility revenue
bonds, due in semi-annual
installments  of  $18483
including interest at 4.875
percent through March 1,
2036. $ 500,818 - 12,675 488,143 13,310

Note payables -

$500,000 2007 Water Utility
Alaska Drinking Water loan,
due in annual instaliments of
$25,000 plus interest at 1.5
percent through Aprl 1,
2026. 275,000 - 25,000 250,000 25,000

$580,326 Alaska Clean Water
loan, due in annual
installments of  $33,801
including interest at 1.5
percent through October 1,
2033. 529,756 - 25,855 503,901 26,243

Note payable - construction in
progress, $302,500 Alaska
Clean Water Loan 159,817 99,543 - 259,360 -

Accrued leave 29,833 37,952 37,264 30,521 30,521

Total business-type activities $ 1,495224 137,495 100,794 1,531,925 95,074

Alaska Clean Water Loan - In 2013, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation for $302,500 with a loan term of 20 years at a rate of 1.5 percent per annum.
The project will provide funding for three new emergency generators to be used by the City’s wastewater
utility in the event of a power failure. This project was still in progress at December 31, 2016, so no
repayment schedule for this debt has been determined. The note payable at December 31, 2016, includes
loan advances received in 2016 by the City in the amount of $99,543.
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Governmental activities

The annual debt service requirements of the general obligation bonds and notes payable at December 31,
2016 that are in repayment status follow:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Special Assessment Bonds

December 31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 70,000 33,950 103,950 14,605 2,285 16,890
2018 70,000 31,150 101,150 15,298 1,592 16,890
2019 75,000 27,650 102,650 18,220 865 19,085
2020 80,000 23,900 103,900 - - -
2021 85,000 19,900 104,900 - - -
2022-2025 375,000 38,750 413,750 - - -
$ 755,000 175,300 930,300 48,123 4,742 52,865

Business type activities

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Notes Payable
December 31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 13,310 23,655 36,965 51,243 11,309 62,552
2018 13,967 22,998 36,965 51,637 10,540 62,177
2019 14,656 22,309 36,965 52,036 9,765 61,801
2020 15,380 21,585 36,965 52,442 8,985 61,427
2021 16,139 20,826 36,965 27,853 5,948 33,801
2022-2026 93,454 91,372 184,826 270,661 30,847 301,508
2027-2031 118,901 65,924 184,825 181,918 12,465 194,383
2032-2036 202,336 33,547 235,883 66,111 1,491 67,602
$ 488,143 302,216 790,359 753,901 91,350 845,251
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5. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

There were no interfund balances at December 31, 2016. A schedule of interfund transfers for the year ended
December 31, 2016, follows:

Transfers:
Fromthe Non-major Govenmental Funds to the General Fund $ 22,500
Fromthe Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund to the General Fund 7,500

6. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2016, there were no City departments with an excess of expenditures over
appropriations.

7. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plans are available to all employees and permit them to defer a portion of their
salary to future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The provisions of the plans require that all assets and
income of the plan be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of property
and contents, (b) employee torts, (c) professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, (d) environmental
damage, (e) workers' compensation; i.e., employee injuries, and (f) medical insurance costs of employees.

The City is self-insured for employee health benefits and group life insurance. An umbrella policy
covers individual claims in excess of $25,000 and liabilities are recorded for all claims when they are
reported to the City. The self-insurance plan is administered by Great West Life and Annuity Insurance
Company and the expenditures are recorded in the General Fund. The City accrues estimated costs of
health care based on plan maximums.

The City maintains third party insurance coverage for property and liability risks. Coverage for property
insurance exceeds $11 million with 90 percent coinsurance and a $10,000 deductible per incident.
Liability coverage includes $2 million in liability insurance and $3 million in umbrella insurance with a
$10,000 deductible. Workers compensation insurance is in accordance with Alaska statutes. Additionally,
the City has $4 million in emergency medical services professional liability, $5 million in law enforcement
liability, $1 million public officials and employment practices liability insurance, and auto and other equipment
coverage.
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9. RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension (DB) Plan

Plan Description

The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) is administered by the State of Alaska (State) and is
established to provide pension, post-employment healthcare, survivor, and disability benefits to eligible
employees. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only
by the State Legislature. Tiers I, II, and III are a defined benefit plan. Effective July 1, 2006, the State
Legislature (Senate Bill 141) closed the defined benefit plan of PERS to new members and new
employees after that date participate in the Tier IV PERS/TRS Defined Contribution (DC) Plans
described later in these notes. Effective July 1, 2008, the State Legislature (Senate Bill 125) converted
the PERS plan from an agent multiple-employer to a cost sharing multiple-employer plan.

Employee Contribution Rates

Regular City employees are required to contribute 6.75 percent of their annual covered salary. Police and
firefighters are required to contribute 7.5 percent of their annual covered salary.

Employer and Other Contribution Rates

There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions and related
liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.

Employer Effective Rate: This is the actual employer pay-in-rate. Under current legislation, this rate is
statutorily capped at 22 percent of eligible wages for PERS, subject to a wage floor, and other
termination events. These rates are applied to PERS participating wages, respectively, including those
wages attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. Contributions derived from the defined
contribution employees are referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability or DBUL contribution.

ARM Board Adopted Rate: This is the rate adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board. This
rate is actuarially determined and used to calculate annual Plan Funding requirements, without regard to
the statuary rate cap or the GASB accounting rate. Prior to July 1, 2015, there were no constraints or
restrictions on the actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation.
Effective, July 1, 2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for
past service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term which ends in
2039. This will result in lower ARM Board rates in future years.

On-behalf Contribution Rate: This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment as mandated
under current statute. Under state law, subject to annual appropriation, the state will contribute an on-
behalf payment into the plan in an amount equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the
Employer Effective Rate. On-behalf contribution amounts are recognized in the fund financial statements
in the year they are appropriated by the State.
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9. RETIREMENT PLANS, CONTINUED

Contribution rates for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were determined from the June 30, 2014
actuarial valuation. The contribution rates for the six months ended December 31, 2016 were determined
from the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Six months ended June 30, 2016:

Employer ARM Board On Behalf
Effectvie Rate  Adopted Rate Contribution Rate
Pension 13.25% 16.88% 3.63%
Post employment healthcare 8.75% 10.31% 1.56%
Total PERS contribution rate 22.00% 27.19% 5.19%

Six months ended December 31, 2016:

Employer ARM Board On Behalf
Effective Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate
Defined benefit pension 14.96% 19.10% 4.14%
Post employment heathcare 7.04% 7.04% 0.00%
Total PERS contribution 22.00% 26.14% 4.14%

In 2016, the City was credited with the following contributions into the pension plan. Employee
contributions were $92,455.

Employer Contributions (Including DBUL) $ 284,681
On-behalf Contributions 140,891
$_ 425,572

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pension-City of North Pole

At December 31, 2016, the City reported a liability of $5,695,667 for its proportionate share of the
employer pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2015. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating entries, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the City’s proportion was .1019000
percent for the employer portion which was an increase of .0032810 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2015.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City recognized pension expemse of $1,011,237. At
December 31, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments $ 559,857 -
Difference between expencted and actual experience 524 63,488
Changes in assumptions 26,270 -
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions 87,284 -
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date. 152,949 -

$ 826,884 63,488

The amount of $152,949 is reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ended December 31, 2017. Amounts recognized as deferred inflows of resources will be recognized

in pension expense as follows:
Year ended December 31,

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

Amount to be recognized:

$ 144,219
89,567
228,871
147,790
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Actuarial assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation was based on the results of an actuarial
experience study performed as of June 30, 2013.

Investment Return/Discount Rate 8.00 percent per year (geomentric), compounded annually net of
€Xpenses.
Salary Scale Inflation- 3.12 percent per year. Salary increases graded by age and

service, from 9.66 percent to 4.92 percent for Peace
Officeres/Firefighters and from 8.55 percent to 4.34 percent for all

others.
Payroll Growth 3.62 percent per year. (inflation + productivity)
Mortality Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience. 60 percent for

male rates and 65 percent of female post-termination mortality rates.
Deaths are assumed to be occupational 70 percent of the time for
Peace Officer/Firefighters, 50 percent of the time for Others.

Retirement Retirement rates based upon the 2010-2013 actual experience.
Deferred vested members are assumed to retire at their earliest
unreduced  retirement date  for  Others (Non  Peace
Officer/Firefighter). For Peace Officer/Firefighter, Tier 1 deferred
vested members are assumed to retire at age 55 and Tiers 2 and 3
deferred vested members are assumed to retire at age 60.

Marriage and Age Difference Wives are assumed to be three years younger than husbands. For
Others (Non Peace Officer/Firefighters) 75 percent of male members
and 70 percent female members are assumed to be married. For
Peace Officer/Firefighters, 85 percent of male members and 60
percent female members are assumed to be married.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long term-expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table (note that
the rates shown exclude the inflation component:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity 5.35%
Global Equity 5.55%
Private Equity 6.25%
Fixed Income Composite 0.80%
Real estate 3.65%
Alternative Equity 4.70%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that Employer and State contributions will continue to follow
the current funding policy which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Retirement System’s net pension liability and the City’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
one percentage point lower (7.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (9.00 percent) than the current

rate:

Proportional 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
City-PERS Share (7.00%) Rate (8.00%) (9.00%)
System Net Pension 100.00% $ 7,199,118,000 § 5589,598,000 $ 4,232,040,000

City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability-Employer portion 0.1019000% $ 7335730 $ 5,695,667 $ 4,312,349
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Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PERS financial report.

Defined Contribution Pension (DC) Plan

Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV or TRS Tier III, defined contribution
plans. These plans are administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration as with the
defined benefit plans noted above. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and
may be amended only by the State Legislature. The Alaska Retirement Management Board may also
amend contribution requirements. Included in the Plan, are individual pension accounts, retiree medical
insurance plan and a separate Health Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members
pay medical premiums and other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan. This Plan is
included in the comprehensive annual financial reports for PERS, as noted above.

Employee Contribution Rates

City employees are required to contribute 8 percent of their annual covered salary for PERS. This
amount goes directly to the individual’s account.

Employer Contribution Rates

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City was required to contribute 5 percent of covered salary
into the plan for PERS.

However, the total employer contribution must equal 22 percent of covered payroll. After subtracting,
the defined contribution (DC) pension rates, ODD, Retiree medical, and the HRA contribution, any
residual amount of the 22 percent is deposited into the defined benefit (DB) plan. Locally known as the
defined benefit unfunded liability (DBUL) payment, this amount is intended to mitigate against the
declining payroll base that resulted from the creation of the DC plan.

Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25 percent with two years of
service, plus an additional 25 percent per year thereafter for full vesting at five years of service. The
City and employee contributions to PERS for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $71,224 and
$113,839, respectively. The City contribution amounts were recognized as pension expense.
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Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans

Defined Benefit OPEB

As part of its participation in the PERS DB Plans (Tiers 1,II, III for PERS) the City participates in the
Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust (ARHCT). The ARHCT is self-funded and provides major medical
coverage to retirees of the System. Benefits vary by Tier level. The plan is administered by the State of
Alaska, Department of Administration. Employer contribution rates are established in concert with the
Defined Benefit Plan described earlier in these notes. The City was required to contribute 8.75 percent
of covered payroll into the PERS OPEB plans for the period January 1 through June 30, 2016 and 7.04
percent of covered payroll for the period July 1 through December 31, 2016. In addition during 2016,
the State on-behalf contributions for OPEB for the PERS plans were 1.56 percent of covered payroll for
the period January 1 through July 31, 2016 and O percent of covered payroll for the period July 1
through December 31, 2016. Employees do not contribute to the DB OPEB plans. City contributions for
the PERS DB OPEB plan was $158,969 for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Defined Contributions OPEB

Defined Contribution Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) participate in the Occupational Death and
Disability Plan (ODD) and the Retiree Medical Plan. Information on these plans is included in the
comprehensive annual financial report for the PRS plans noted above. These plans provide for death,
disability and post-employment health care. Employees do not contribute to the DC OPEB plan.
Employer contribution rates for the DC OPEB plan were 2.73 percent for Peace Officers/Firefighters and
1.90 percent for all others for the period January 1 through June 30, 2016. For the period July 1 through
December 31, 2016, DC OPEB rates were 1.67 percent for Peace Officers/ Firefighters and 1.35 percent
for all others.

In addition, PERS defined contribution members also participate in the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement. Per Alaska Statute 39.30.370 this contribution amount is “three percent of the average
annual employee compensation of all employees of all employers in the plan”. For the period January 1,
2016 thru June 30, 2016, for actual remittance, this amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full time
or part-time employee and approximates $2,005 per year for each full-time employee, and $1.28 per
hour for part-time employees. For the period July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, for actual
remittance, this amount is calculated as $2,049 per year for each full-time employee and $1.31 per hour
for part-time employees.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City contributed $78,409 in DC OPEB costs. These amounts
were recognized as expense.

-34-



DRAFT 6-14-17

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

10. CONTINGENCIES

11.

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies, principally the federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, would become a liability.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On November 21, 2016, the North Pole City Council approved a City sales tax rate increase of 1 percent.

Effective January 1, 2017, the new City of North Pole sales tax will be 5 percent with a $10 cap for all
applicable transactions after that date.
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SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE INFORMATION ON THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
December 31, 2016

City's
Proportionate
Share of the Net

Pension Plan Fiduciary
City's State of Alaska Liability as a Net Position as
City's Proportionate Proportionate City's Percentage of a Percentage of

Proportion of Share of the Share of the Total Net Covered- Covered- the Total

Year Ended the Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension Pension Employee Employee Pension

December 31 Liability Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability
2016 0.10190000% $ 5,695,667 $ 717,592 $ 6,413,259 2,696,738 211% 59.5500%
2015 0.09861000% $ 4,782,513 $ 1,280,630 $ 6,063,143 $ 2,539,576 188% 63.9600%

Information presented for 2016 is based on Plan Measurement Date. For December 31, 2016 the plan measurement
date is June 30, 2016.

This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. Information for additional years will be included as it
becomes available.

The plan is not reporting any changes in benefit terms or assumptions from the prior measurement period.
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SCHEDULE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE CONTRIBUTIONS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
December 31, 2016

Contributions as

Constributions
Relative to the City's a Percentage of
Contractually Contractually Contribution Covered- Covered-
Year Ended Required Required Deficiency Employee Employee
December 31 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
2016 $ 593,282 § 593,282 $ - 8 2,696,738 22%
2015 $ 558,707 $ 558,707 $ - 8 2,539,576 22%

Information in this table reports the City's pension contributions to PERS during the last two fiscal years.
The 2016 contribution is reported as a deferred outflow on the December 31, 2016 basic

financial statements.
This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. Information for additional years will be

included as it becomes available.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is established to account for the revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic
governmental activities of the City such as police and fire protection, public works, planning, legal services,
administrative services, etc. Appropriations are made from the fund annually. The fund will continue to exist
indefinitely.

Revenue, for this and other funds, is recorded by source, i.e., taxes, State of Alaska, etc. Expenditures are
recorded first by function, then by activity and object of the expenditure.

General Fund expenditures are made primarily for current day-to-day operating expenditures and operating

equipment. Capital expenditures for large-scale public improvements, such as buildings, are accounted for
elsewhere in the Capital Projects or Enterprise Funds.
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with comparative data for 2015

ASSETS 2016 2015

Cash and cash equity $ 1,899,893 1,974,594

Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $-0-)
Sales taxes 372,503 395,544
Property taxes 7,586 7,312
Business taxes 9,450 11,507
Grants - 3,679
Other 60,352 44,146
449,891 462,188
Total assets $ 2,349,784 2,436,782

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable 97,394 140,000
Accrued liabilities 113,933 56,426
Healthcare payable 80,808 70,775
Unearned revenue - -
292,135 267,201
Fund balance-committed 268,201 288,578
Fund balance-assigned - -
Fund balance - unassigned 1,789,456 1,881,011
2,057,658 2,169,589
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 2,349,784 2,436,782

-44-




DRAFT 6-14-17

CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year ended December 31, 2016
with comparative data for 2015

2016 2015
Variance
Budget Favorable
Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Sales, alcohol, and use taxes $ 3,361,149 3,327,838 (33,311) 3,282,559
Property taxes 816,680 819,599 2,919 819,274
Total taxes 4,177,829 4,147,437 (30,392) 4,101,833
Business licenses 19,250 19,263 13 16,460
Fireworks permit 12,000 12,000 - 12,000
Charges for services - ambulance service 515,375 493,940 (21,435) 515,985
Federal government
DOT commercial vehicle safety - - 5 -
Alaska Highway Safety Office - - - -
Corps of Engineers 82,795 78,143 (4,652) 78,370
FEMA grant - - - 7,030
Currency Crimes Task Force
and Marijuana Eradication - 413 413 1,488
Total Federal government 82,795 78,556 (4,239) 86,888
State of Alaska
State shared revenue 182,636 151,906 (30,730) 226,893
PERS relief - 124,291 124,291 619,234
Total State of Alaska 182,636 276,197 93,561 846,127
Investment Income 4,235 3,322 (913) 2,609
Other revenues
Citation revenues 135,000 113,153 (21,847) 97,890
Fingerprinting 18,500 23,660 5,160 14,335
Police reports 1,000 1,078 78 1,100
Fire department revenue - 3,790 3,790 -
Other public safety revenues 3,800 15,835 12,035 17,178
Fleet reserves revenues 15,264 15,264 - -
Miscellaneous 20,000 17,268 (2,732) 10,832
Total other revenues 193,564 190,048 (3,516) 141,335
Total revenues 5,187,684 5,220,763 33,079 5,723,237

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
Year ended December 31, 2016
with comparative data for 2015

2016 2015
Variance
Budget Favorable
Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
EXPENDITURES
General government
Administration
Salaries and benefits 503,469 495,775 7,694 460,123
Purchased services 126,490 126,077 413 181,873
Operational expenses 60,250 43,772 16,478 34,385
Leases and rentals 5,750 5,527 223 -
Travel, training, and memberships 21,500 15,418 6,082 24,140
Vehicle expenses 2,000 243 1,757 307
Infrastructure outlay 5,000 4,597 403 7,497
Fleet reserves 20,000 16,250 3,750 -
Litigation 100,000 97,830 2,170 -
Other 10,500 4,544 5,956 19,771
854,959 810,033 44,926 728,096
City Council
Salaries and benefits - 16,250 (16,250) 16,450
Purchased services - 4,955 (4,955) 2,437
Operational expenses - 2,340 (2,340) 1,368
Travel, training, and memberships - 4,088 (4,088) -
Other - 3,482 (3,482) 3,953
- 31,115 (31,115) 24,208
Total general government 854,959 841,148 13,811 752,303
Public safety
Police department
Salaries and benefits 1,496,375 1,461,027 35,348 1,412,153
Purchased services 239,900 231,443 8,457 264,086
Operational expenses 71,300 55,219 16,081 57,257
Leases and rentals 1,800 1,457 343 -
Travel, training, and memberships 16,500 13,436 3,064 15,602
Vehicle expenses 60,295 51,120 9,175 45,734
Infrastructure outlay 6,000 4,523 1,477 3,218
Fleet reserves 85,905 85,905 - -
Other 43,500 42,405 1,095 25,894
2,021,575 1,946,535 75,040 1,823,944
Fire department
Salaries and benefits 1,642,129 1,579,348 62,781 1,532,325
Purchased services 90,150 151,978 (61,828) 68,428
Operational expenses 75,498 72,142 3,356 87,121
Travel, training, and memberships 13,212 12,850 362 16,470
Vehicle expenses 35,000 31,005 3,995 33,433
Infrastructure outlay 6,000 5,823 177 427
Fleet reserves - - - -
Other 7,540 6,677 863 6,718
1,869,529 1,859,823 9,706 1,744,922
Total public safety 3,891,104 3,806,358 84,746 3,568,866

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
Year ended December 31, 2016
with comparative data for 2015

2016 2015
Variance
Budget Favorable
Final Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
EXPENDITURES, CONTINUED
Public works
Salaries and benefits $ 289,986 289,946 40 302,269
Purchased services 96,050 44 507 51,543 84,400
Operational expenses 51,100 45,195 5,905 37,935
Travel, training, and memberships 1,500 98 1,402 -
Vehicle expenses 21,000 11,512 9,488 19,218
Infrastructure outlay 66,850 45,486 21,364 83,841
Fleet reserves - 8,050 (8,050) -
Other 109,650 96,811 12,839 86,101
636,136 541,605 94,531 613,764
Debt service
Capital lease principal - 42,696 (42,696) 42,967
Capital lease interest - 6,596 (6,596) 3,978
- 49,292 (49,292) 46,945
PERS on-behalf - 124,291 (124,291) 619,234
Total expenditures 5,382,199 5,362,694 19,505 5,601,112
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures (194,515) (141,931) 52,584 122,125
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (194,109) - 194,109 (28)
Transfers in 417,253 30,000 (387,253) 25,593
Net other financing sources (uses) 223,144 30,000 (193,144) 25,565
Net change in fund balance $ 28,629 (111,931) (140,560) 147,690
Beginning fund balance 2,169,589 2,021,899
Ending fund balance $ 2,057,658 2,169,589

See notes to financial statements.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are established to finance particular activities and are created from receipts of
designated revenues.

Building Department
This fund is used to accumulate moneys from the building permits and inspections.

North Pole Community Ice Rink
This fund accounts for the activities related to the development of the community ice rink project.

North Pole Festival
This fund is used to record donations and expenditures for summer and winter festivals and
the Mayor’s picnic.

Justice
This fund is used to record federal Department of Justice forfeitures and expenditures for public safety.

State Forfeitures
This fund is used to record state public safety forfeitures and expenditures for public safety.

Treasury
This fund is used to record federal Department of the Treasury forfeitures and expenditures for public

safety.

JAG
This fund is used to account for the State Department of Public Safety JAG grant.

Impound Lot
This fund is used to account for monies collected from impound fees.

Bed Tax Fund
This fund is used to account for monies collected from bed tax.
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general obligation bond and special assessment debt principal, interest and related costs for issuances that are
not accounted for in the Enterprise Fund.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year ended December 31, 2016
with comparative data for 2015

2016 2015
Revenues
Special assessments 83,480 123,897
Investment income 33,658 36,579
Bad debt recovery 10,230 -
127,368 160,476
Expenditures - debt service
2005 Series B - G.O. bonds
Principal - 65,000
Interest - 1,625
Total 2005 Series B-G.O. bonds - 66,625
2002 special assessment bonds
Principal 13,934 13,318
Interest 14,936 3,572
Total 2002 special assessment bonds 28,870 16,890
2012 Series 2 refunding bonds
Principal 65,000 -
Interest 36,550 36,550
Total 2012 Series 2 refunding bonds 101,550 36,550
Other fees and expenses 1,058 1,663
Total expenditures 131,478 121,728
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (4,110) 38,748
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (to) from other funds - -
Net changes in fund balance (4,110) 38,748
Beginning fund balance 316,798 278,050
Ending fund balance 312,688 316,798
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND

An Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprise — where the intent of the government’s council is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges;
or where the government’s council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes.

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
This fund accounts for the operations of the water and sewer system.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
ASSET:
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equity 995,492 1,409,430
Receivables
Grants 268,920 92,063
Accounts 240,647 236,897
Allowance for doubtful accounts (45,959) (45,959)
Total current assets 1,459,100 1,692,431
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 52,137,557 49,472,805
Less accumulated depreciation (30,540,158) (28,817,212)
Total property, plant and equipment 21,597,399 20,655,593
Restricted cash 115,235 129,541
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 97,423 118,181
Total assets 23,269,157 22,595,746
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 133,181 111,858
Accrued liabilities 66,983 47,073
Customer deposits 40,052 34,834
Unearned revenues 18,793 53,799
Current portion of bond and note payable 64,553 63,540
Total current liabilities 323,562 311,104
BOND AND NOTES PAYABLE, less current portion 1,436,851 1,401,852
Total liabilities 1,760,413 1,712,956
PERS PENSION LIABILITY - EMPLOYER PORTION 671,063 597,374
DEFERRED INFLOWS 7,480 10,576
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 20,095,998 19,190,202
Unrestricted 734,203 1,084,638
Total net position 20,830,201 20,274,840
Total liabilities and net position 23,269,157 22,595,746

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES
Water $ 842,176 871,492
Sewer 742,552 731,651
1,584,728 1,603,143
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water
Salaries and benefits 235,946 209,937
Purchased services 53,370 57,458
Operational expense 146,131 188,904
Travel training, and memberships 2,685 1,949
Vehicle expense 7,167 13,125
Infrastructure 18,284 4,176
Depreciation 603,031 616,022
Other 660 55,433
1,067,274 1,147,004
Sewer
Salaries and benefits 346,454 260,006
Purchased services 80,933 77,606
Operational expense 111,415 131,639
Travel training, and memberships 2,002 1,312
Vehicle expense 5,299 26,215
Infrastructure 24,040 1,116
Depreciation 1,119,915 1,144,041
Other 73,084 152,548
1,763,142 1,794,483
Operating loss (1,245,688) (1,338,344)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Alaska Clean Water Loan debt forgiveness - 31,763
State of Alaska PERS relief 16,600 82,437
State of Alaska PERS on-behalf payment (16,600) (82,437)
Interest expense (32,422) (42,960)
(32,422) (11,197)
Loss before contributions and transfers (1,278,110) (1,349,541)
Interfund transfer in (out) (7,500) -
Capital contributions 1,840,971 363,556
Changes in net position 555,361 (985,985)
Beginning net position 20,274,840 21,260,825
Ending net position $ 20,830,201 20,274,840

See notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1,404,121 2,092,034
Cash paid to suppliers (706,308) (1,003,482)
Cash paid to employees (298,366) (316,523)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 399,447 772,029
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in (7,500) -
(7,500) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant, and equipment (2,664,752) 412,975)
Proceeds of long term debt 99,543 18,644
Capital contributions received 1,840,971 363,556
Payment of revenue bond principal and interest (95,953) (105,530)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (820,191) (136,305)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (428,244) 635,724
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, January 1 1,538,971 903,247
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, December 31 $ 1,110,727 1,538,971
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year:
Cash and cash equity 995,492 1,409,430
Restricted cash 115,235 129,541
$ 1,110,727 1,538,971
Operating loss (1,245,688) (1,338,344)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,722,946 1,760,063
Loss on displosal of assets - 2,806
Unfunded PERS liability 91,351 121,546
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (180,607) 488,891
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 21,323 (244,149)
Accrued liabilities 19,910 3,790
Customer deposits 5,218 1,907
Unearned revenues (35,006) (24,481)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 399,447 772,029
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan debt forgiveness $ - 31,763

See notes to financial statements.
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Pole, Alaska, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City of North Pole, Alaska’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June XX,
2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of North Pole, Alaska’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency - 2016-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of North Pole, Alaska’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

City of North Pole, Alaska’s Response to Finding

City of North Pole, Alaska’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
corrective action plan. The City of North Pole, Alaska’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Fairbanks, Alaska
June XX, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ALASKA
AUDIT GUIDE AND COMPLIANCE SUPPLEMENT FOR STATE SINGLE AUDITS

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of North Pole, Alaska

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited City of North Pole, Alaska’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits that could have a direct and
material effect on each of City of North Pole, Alaska’s major state programs for the year ended December 31,
2016. City of North Pole, Alaska’s major state programs are identified in the accompanying schedule of state
financial assistance.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of North Pole, Alaska’s major state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Supplement for State Single Audits. Those standards and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Supplement for State Single Audits require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
City of North Pole, Alaska’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program.
However our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of North Pole, Alaska’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program
In our opinion, City of North Pole, Alaska complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for
the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of North Pole, Alaska is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Alaska
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of North Pole, Alaska’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of State of Alaska Audit
Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Fairbanks, Alaska
June XX, 2017
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State Grantor / Pass Through Grantor / Program Title Grant ID Number Expenditures
Alaska Department of Administration
Public employees retirement system on behalf payment* N/A 140,891
Total Alaska Department of Administration
Alaska Department of merc mmunity & Economic Development
Community Revenue Sharing Program* N/A 125,388
North Pole Archival System 14-DC-112 22,151
100 Foot Aerial Platform 14-DC-109 1,284
Mixing Zone Compliance Plan* 15-DC-114 199,752
Redesign of City Hall and Police Station 15-DC-16 25,984
Strategic Community Plan 15-DC-117 22,543
Prepare a Comprehensive Strategic Community Plan 15-RR-006 29,382
Total Alaska Department of Commerce, Community & 426,484
Economic Development
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation
Lift Station Rehabilitation, Phase III* 63324 1,689,891
Total Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 1,689,891
Alaska Department of Revenue
Electric and Telephone Co-op Tax N/A 18,422
Liquor Licenses N/A 7,900
Fisheries Business Tax N/A 196
Total Alaska Department of Revenue 26,518
Total State Financial Assistance 2,283,784

* Denotes Major Program

See Notes to Schedule of State Financial Assistance.

-65-




DRAFT 6-14-17

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of state financial assistance (Schedule) includes the state grant activity of City of
North Pole, Alaska under programs of the state government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of State of Alaska Audit Guide
and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of the City of North Pole, Alaska, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of City of North Pole, Alaska.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended December 31, 2016

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Financial Assistance

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Dollar threshold used to distinguish a state major program:  $ 75,000

-67-
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
Year ended December 31, 2016

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2016-001 Year-end fixed asset accounting

Condition: The year-end schedules to support the general ledger balances were substantially better than in
prior years, and the general government and water and sewer grant accounting was much improved.
However, additional effort is needed to eliminate deficiencies in the fixed asset schedules, and the general
ledger accounting for asset additions. The fixed asset records require updating for asset additions and
deletions, and they need to be rolled forward from the prior year, so current year depreciation is
calculated properly. The water and sewer general ledger should reflect the asset additions and deletions;
construction in progress; and grant funded assets should be recorded as a capital contribution. Assets
funded from utility retained earnings should be recorded in the water and sewer funds as fixed assets.

Criteria: Management is required to institute an adequate system of internal control over financial
reporting.

Context: The additions and deletions to the depreciation schedules were provided by the client, but the
accounting and calculations were not correct.

Cause: The City did not adjust the records at year-end.

Effect: The audit identified misstatements in the general ledger that were not identified and corrected by
the City’s internal control system. This resulted in a less efficient audit process and audit adjustments.

Recommendation: Additional effort is needed at year end to ensure these important year-end adjustments
are made.

Grantee response: See corrective action plan
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CITY OF NORTH POLE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
Year ended December 31, 2016

SECTION III - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

The City of North Pole, Alaska did not have any findings that are required to be reported in accordance
with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year ended December 31, 2016

Finding: 2015-001, Year-end accounting for the Capital and certain non-major funds.

Improvements were made by City accounting staff in closing the books and adjusting the general ledger.
Significant deficiencies remain with applying generally accepted accounting principles to fixed asset schedules
and the water and sewer general ledger.

Finding: 2015-002, Schedule of state financial assistance.
The City did not prepare the schedule of state financial assistance in 2015. However, the City did prepare a
schedule of state financial assistance in 2016.
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CITY OF NORTH POLE. ALASKA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
Year ended December 31, 2016

SECTION II -FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2016-001 - YEAR-END FIXED ASSET ACCOUNTING
Name of Contact Person: Mayor, Bryce J] Ward

Corrective Action:

Proposed Completion Date:

71-
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Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Introduced & Advanced: June 5, 2017
Possible Adoption: June 19, 2017

CITY OF NORTH POLE
ORDINANCE 17-17

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING
TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36.470, PERSONNEL CODE, PAY - F. PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT, WITHIN THE NORTH POLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing
requirement; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to
the requirements of the City and to clarify questionable areas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North
Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be
codified.

Section 2. Amend Title 2, Chapter 36 Personnel Code, Section .470 Pay, as
follows, [new text in italicized red font; deleted text in strikethreugh font:

2.36.470 Pay F.

Professional Development Step Salary Increases. Employees may earn horizontal step
increases for professional development as follows:

Firefighter Personnel:
Meets requirements for rank advancement 2 Steps
(Engineer, Lieutenant, Captain, Deputy Fire Chief)

Firefighter II/EMT 111 2 Steps
Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator 2 Steps
Fire Officer I 2 Steps
Firefighter 11/MICP 2 Steps

City of North Pole
Ordinance 17-17 Page 1



Sponsored by: Mayor Ward
Introduced & Advanced: June 5, 2017
Possible Adoption: June 19, 2017

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the
first City business day following its adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City
Council this 19" day of June, 2017.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASSED
Yes:

No:
Absent:

City of North Pole
Ordinance 17-17 Page 2



City of North Pole
Tuition Reimbursement Agreement

2.36.231 Tuition reimbursements.

A. Anemployee who registers for course work to be taken on personal time that is considered
to be of benefit to the City may be reimbursed up to one hundred percent of the tuition expense.
In order to be considered for reimbursement, the employee must, prior to enrollment, receive
department head approval and submit a tuition reimbursement agreement obtained by Human
Resources that explains how the course will be of mutual benefit to the City and the employee
and that funds are available in the department’s budget. Pre-approval by the City Council is
required on all tuition reimbursements prior to the enrollment.

B. Upon completion of the course, the employee shall submit evidence of successful
completion and a brief written summary of the outcome of the course to their respective
department head who will verify and issue the reimbursement. A copy of the transcript must be
attached to the tuition reimbursement request. The employee shall sign an agreement that the
tuition will be returned to the City if the employee leaves City employment within twelve
months from date of completion of the course. (Ord. 16-07 § 2, 2016; Ord. 02-01 § 2, 2002; Ord.
00-04 § 2, 2000)

Department: Po\see PepartmeT

Employee Name: E my\ y fr bsan

Date of request: §-2z- 207

Course Work Desired: Qateylys  Fsseatials -F230
Education Institution: Jnivers |'1->( o€ Alaska
Course Dates: A< yzz- Jowe 30

Cost of Course work: $ $76.00

City of North Pole, Alaska

Per Ordinance 16-07 Page 1 of 2



Departmental Approval

This course is deemed beneficial to the City of North Pole and the employee and funds are
available in the department’s budget. gééé
Department Head Signature:

/ e — |
Date: 6-6-\1

City Council Approval
This agreement was approved by the City Council on the day of ,
: (Minutes attached)
City Clerk Attest: Seal

The employee agrees that the tuition will be returned to the city if he/she leaves city
employment within twelve months from date of completion of the course.

Upon completion of the course, the employee shall furnish evidence of successful
completion and a brief written summary of the outcome of the course to their respective
department head who will verify and issue the reimbursement. A copy of the transcript
must be attached to the Tuition Reimbursement Request.

Employee Signature:

Dept Head Signature:

Date:

City of North Pole, Alaska

Per Ordinance 16-07 Page 2 of 2



North Pole Police Dept. Chief Steve Dutra
125 Snowman Ln. Phone: 907-488-8459
North Pole, AK 99705 Fax: 907-488-5299

June 4, 2017

To: Officer Emily Gibson

I want to thank you for your efforts to continue your education. I am so proud that you are able to
juggle the demands of the family and work but still find the time to further your education. It is an
inspiration to others around you. Keep up the good work.

Based off the information you provided to me regarding Math F230: Calculus Essentials I am convinced
this will give you the skills you need to succeed within your job. I will reimburse you for the full
amount you requested, $576.00. I will send this to the city council for their approval. Once you have
completed the course please supply me with your grade.

Again keep up the good work and I am glad we are able to support your hard work.

Sincerely,

Chief éteve Dutra &



North Pole Police Dept. Detective Emily Gibson
125 Snowman Ln. Phone: 907-488-6902
North Pole, AK 99705 Fax: 907-488-5299

Memorandum

To: Chief Steve Dutra
Subject: UAF Spring Courses
Date: 5/22/20175¢#7%

Greetings,

I am writing this memo in regards to reimbursement for a course that I am currently taking this
summer. The class I am taking is Math F230: Calculus Essentials with Applications and is my
final math class for my first year in the accounting bachelor’s degree program at UAF. Within
the past year I have taken 6 courses with work and 4 kids (including a new baby) and have
been able to finish them successfully. This class has been difficult and is definitely teaching me
patience, how to think logically, and resolve more complex math calculations. This will help
me in police work through problem solving, critical thinking and attention to detail.

I attached the cost of the class and request reimbursement of $576.

: yyx%/&m

EmilyAGibson



Account Detail for Term

1ofl

RETURN TO MENU  SITE MAP | HELP LOG OUT to Help Protect Your Personal Information

30845327 Emily I. Gibson

Account Detail for Term May 22, 2017 10:49 am

Q Your current 1098T dellvery option Is electronic only. Click here to change your option.

"3 Review detail transactions on your account, including current and future balance totals for the selected term and other terms.
Questlons? Contact the appropriate office(s).
Once you click "Pay Now", you will be forwarded to a separate secure websilte to:

* Make your payment via a credit card or ACH payment

e Establish (or update) an Authorized User who can make payments on your account

e Schedule your payments in advance for automatic payment on the scheduled due date

e Receive email notification on payments made to your account by you or your Authorized User.

When you are done making your payment or establishing your authorized user, lagout and close the payment system window before returning to UAOnline, If you have
any questions, please contact your campus business offlce.

If you would like to add a parking decal, post office box or health insurance charge to your account before making payment, click on the appropriate link
Parking Decal For UAF Students ONLY - Click to add parking to your account (note this will take you to an external parking site)
SRC Usage - UAF students only

Payment plans are available. For more information choose the link that represents the MAU where you have been admitted to your degree program.
UAA Campus Payment Plans UAF Campus Payment Plans UAS Campus Payment Plans

% ! By checking this box, you acknowledge you have read and agree to the following refund policy: Refunds are processed in accordance with approved schedules for
dropping or withdrawing from courses. Please consult your local campus for the current schedule. Refunds are also processed for credit balances on accounts, net of any
amounts owed to the university. If a refund is due, payments made to the university by credit card will generally be credited back to the card up to the amount of the
charge, subject to any applicable laws, regulations or agreements. Indlviduals paying with gift card or prepaid card should retain the card to preserve the ability to credit
such card.

You must acknowledge the above before proceeding.

PAY NOW

201702 Summer Semester 2017 Term Detail

Detall Code Description Charge Payment Balance

6CSF elearning Dist, Delivery Fee $75.00

6GT eLeamning Tech Fee $15.00

6NC elearning Network Charge $24.00

SEZTL CHSMmssTing Lowee Tution 576,00

FCFF UAF Fadllitles Fee $18.00

FuoL Math/Stat One Time/Sermnester  $35.00
Net Term Balance $743.00
Met Balance for Other Terms: $0.00
Account Balance: $743.00
Current Amount Due: $743.00

14 The Current Amount Due balance may include charges for a prior term(s) which may have different payment deadlines. Please query the prior term.

El No Authorized Financial Aid exlsts on your record for the selected term.

Authorlzed Financial Aid as of May 22, 2017
Account Balance net of Authorized Financial Aid: $743.00
Current Due net of Authorized Financial Aid: $743.00

RELEASE: 8.7.1

© 2017 Ellucian Company L.P. and its affiliates.

5/22/2017 10:50 AM

https://uaonline.alaska.edu/banprod/owa/bwskoacc.P_ViewAcctTerm



125 Snowman Lane

North Pole, Alaska 99705 Clty Of North Pole
(50 408 3003 (1) Director of City Services

bill.butler@northpolealaska.org

Memo

To: City Council

From: Bill Butler

Date: June 13, 2017

Subject: Request to use a Request for Proposal approach to solicit construction contractors for

the water system extension project

Recommendation:

Approve the use of a Request for Proposals to solicit construction contractors for the water system
extension project funded by the sulfolane settlement agreement.

Background

The City has a history of using Invitations to Bid (ITB) to solicit construction contractors and
Requests to Bid (RFP) to solicit professional services—things like an engineer or auditor. The
Municipal Code requires the City Council authorize the use of a RFP versus an ITB (see attached
relevant sections of Municipal Code). The difference between an ITB versus a RFP to select a
contractor is an ITB bases selection based upon the lowest cost responsive bidder. Selection of a
contractor using a RFP is based upon a variety relevant factors that include price.

A provision of the sulfolane settlement agreement has the City being the entity responsible for
managing the construction of the water system extension in partnership with the two other parties to
the agreement—FIlint Hills Resources (FHR) and the State of Alaska (SOA). The construction will be
funded by FHR and SOA with no financial contribution by the City. To expedite the engineering and
design of the water system and to generate the bidding documents, FHR stepped up and provided the
funding to hire the engineering firm Stantec before all the requirements of the settlement agreement
are finalized; for example, the SOA issuing the City a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity
(CPCN) to own and operate the water system which has yet to be issued.

The water system extension project is possibly the largest project to ever be managed by the City. The
settlement agreement is capped at $100 million. Construction is estimated to cost in the range of $90
million. The project will add approximately 40 miles of water mains to the City’s utility and add
improvements to the water treatment plant. Construction is expected to span two construction seasons
starting it 2018 and ending in 2019. Due to the size and complexity of the project, it is critical that the



best construction contractor versus the cheapest contractor be hired to construct the water system
extension.

The initial criteria the Utility proposes to include in the RFP process for soliciting a construction
contractor include the following:

Contractor qualifications
Past performance
Project approach

Safety record

Claims history
References

Bonding

Cost

The RFP will weigh each of the factors as a basis for selecting a construction contractor. The team
reviewing the proposals will include representatives from each of the parties to the settlement—FHR,
SOA and City. Based upon the review and assessment of the proposals, the committee will make a
recommendation to the City Council of the preferred contractor.

Attached is the preliminary draft of the RFP that the City would use to solicit construction contractors
for the water system extension project.



4.16.040 Competitive sealed bidding.
A. Competitive Sealed Bidding.

1. All items purchased by the City in excess of $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars) shall be
awarded by competitive sealed bidding.

2. Aninvitation for bids shall be issued and shall include specifications, and all
contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement.

3. Adequate public notice of the invitation for bids shall be given a reasonable time prior
to the date set forth therein for the opening of bids which shall provide for a minimum of at
least fifteen calendar days. Such notice may include publication in a newspaper of general
circulation a reasonable time prior to bid opening. The public notice shall state the date and
time of the bid opening.

4. Bids shall be opened publicly in the presence of one or more witnesses at the time and
place designated in the invitation for bids. The amount of each bid together with the name
of each bidder shall be recorded; the record and each bid shall be opened to public
inspection.

5. All bid awards shall be made by the City Council. Written notice shall be sent to the
selected bidder who meets the criteria and requirements as outlined in the invitation for
bids.

6. Correction or withdrawal of inadvertently erroneous bids before or after bid opening,
or cancellation of awards or contracts based on such bid mistakes, may be permitted where
appropriate. Mistakes discovered before bid opening may be modified or withdrawn by
written or telegraphic notice received in the office designated in the invitation for bids prior
to the time set for bid opening. After bid opening, corrections in bids shall be permitted
only to the extent that the bidder can show by clear and convincing evidence that mistake
was made, the nature of the mistake and the bid price actually intended. However,
downward correction of a bid, which would displace the apparent low bidder, shall only be
permitted if the error made and the intended bid price can be determined solely from the
bid documents. Upward correction of a bid, established from the bid documents or other
evidence, shall be permitted only if the corrected bid is not within two percent of the next
low responsive bid. All decision to permit the correction or withdrawal of bids, or to cancel
awards of contracts based on bid mistakes, shall be supported by a written determination
made by the City.



7. The contract shall be awarded with responsible promptness by written notice to the
lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets the requirement and criteria set
forth in the invitation for bids. In the event all bids for a construction project exceed
available funds and the low responsive and responsible bid does not exceed such funds by
more than five percent, the City is authorized, when time or economic considerations
preclude resolicitation or work of a reduced scope, to negotiate an adjustment of the bid
price with the low responsive and responsible bidder.

B. Competitive Sealed Proposals.

1. When the City Council determines that the use of competitive sealed bidding is either
not practicable or not advantageous to the City, a contract may be entered into by use of the
competitive sealed proposals method.

2. Proposals shall be solicited through a request for proposals.

3. Adequate public notice of the request for proposals shall be given including
publication in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen days prior to the deadline
for proposals.

4. No proposals shall be handled so as to permit disclosure of the identity of any offeror
or the contents of any proposal to competing offers during the process of negotiation. The
proposals shall be open for public inspection only after contract award by the City Council.

5. The request for proposals shall state the relative importance of price and other
evaluation factors.

6. Award shall be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal is determined in
writing to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration price and the
evaluation factors set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria shall be
used in the evaluation. The contract file shall contain the basis on which the award is made.



Draft Request Proposal to Select a Construction Contractor for the
Water System Extension Project

A. - Example of the Proposal Criteria

The following presents a draft of considered criteria to be weighted and used for scoping
proposals received from a Contractor responding to a Request for Proposal for the
construction procurement process.

1. Contractor Firm Qualifications

a. Describe the firm’s ownership, history, and experience of the firm. How long has the firm
been in business? How long has the firm been established in Alaska? Where the firm’s
main office is located and are there any ancillary offices?

b. Describe the firm’s overall capacity and resources to perform the work within the
timeframe identified. Identify any distinct and substantive qualifications for undertaking
the proposed contract that sets your firm apart from others?

2. Past Performance/Relevant Project Experience

a. Demonstrate that the firm has the relevant experience to perform the services required
of this project.

b. Describe up to (X number) similar and relevant large industrial and/or public projects
that have been completed in the last 10 years.

e Include any projects that were performed in extreme weather and in arctic conditions
similar to the interior of Alaska or on the North Slope.

 Provide a physical description, project dates, project team members involved, and
total contract value.

e Discuss the similarities and relevance of the listed projects.

e Include an Owner and Designer reference for each project including contact name(s),
and current telephone number(s) and/or email addresses.

c. Provide a record of the firm’s schedule/budget performance over the past five years.
Highlight the projects that have been completed in Alaska and of similar order of
magnitude as this project.

3. Project Approach/Management Plan

a. Provide a work plan demonstrating your technical approach to this project.
e Include how staffing will be conducted.

e Include a list of subcontractors and estimated percentage or the work they will perform
and what their specialty is if any.



e.

f.

o How much of the work is anticipated to be self-performed?
« Planned use of local labor and/or labor challenges if any?
e Proposed staging areas and/or equipment and materials storage.

How will communications be handled with the Owner and/or Owner’s representative,
and Design Project Manager? Provide your companies approach and program for quality
control.

Discuss what you see to be the primary challenges of this project and your approach to
meeting those challenges.

Describe the firm’s ability to:
e Minimize change orders;
o Assess and minimize risks;

o Mitigate cost impacts associated with the distance between the project location and
major suppliers and/or metropolitan areas of the state.

Provide an organizational chart indicating roles and lines of authority.

Specific needs or expectations from the Owner.

4. Safety Record

a. Briefly describe your firm’s philosophy and approach to safety.

b.

Provide your current Workman’s Compensation Insurance Multiplier which will be
scored accordingly:

[The intent is provide a table of insurance multiplier scores that are point
related, the higher the multiplier the less points allowed]

5. Claims History

a. Claims and Lawsuits — If the answer to any of the questions below is yes, please attach

details.
e Has the firm failed to complete any work awarded to it in the last 10 years?

e Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings, or suits pending or
outstanding against your organization or its officers?

e Has the firm failed any law suits or requested arbitration with regard to construction
contracts within the last ten years?

e Within the last ten years, has any officer or principal of the firm ever been an officer
or principal of another organization when it failed to complete a construction?



6. References

References listed in Criteria 2 above will be contacted to confirm your company’s
record of conforming to contract requirements, schedules, cost control, forecasting,
change orders, quality of workmanship, and reasonable behavior and commitment to
customer satisfaction.

7. Bonding

A bonding requirement will be included in the proposal.

8. Fee

This section will require the contractor to provide a pricing for the work and it would
be given a point value that will count against the scoring. Generally it’s based on the
low price will get 100% of the points and the next sequence of respondents will be
scored with a ratio of the total points based against the reverse percentage against the
low price. Generally this section carries approximately 40% of the total possible points
that the RFPs can receive.

B. - Example of a Rating System

Each category will be assigned points for rating. The following is an example based on the
foregoing how total points are assigned.

Credentials:
1. Contractor Firm Qualifications 10 points
2. Past Performance/Relevant Project Experience 10 points
3. Project Approach/Management Plan 20 points
4. Safety Record 5 points
5. Claims History 5 points
6. References 5 points
7. Bonding 5 points

Cost:

7. Cost 40 points

Total Points Available 100 points



The point structure can vary depending on how the importance is determined, total points do not
need to be 100 but can be more. Also a rating factor can be introduced to be a multiplier for each
category that may weight on how well that category was narrated or detailed.

Example: 1.0 Excellent, 0.8 Very Good, 0.6 Good, 0.4 Fair, 0.2 Poor. The rating factor for each
criteria category will be multiplied against the points available to determine the total points for
that category.

With regards to the cost, generally the lowest cost is awarded the full points, then the 2nd lowest
is awarded a fraction of the points by dividing the lowest cost by that proposers cost and
multiplying it by the maximum points allowed. Then similarly so for the 3rd lowest bidder, etc.
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Submitted by: Mayor Ward
Passed and Approved: June 19, 2016

CITY OF NORTH POLE
RESOLUTION 17-13

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATING CITY OFFICIALS
AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN ON CITY OF NORTH POLE ACCOUNTS

WHEREAS, in order to carry out the financial responsibilities of city government the City Council must
designate two or more city officials to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other orders on behalf of the
City of North Pole; and

WHEREAS, there is a change in personnel on the North Pole City Council and it is necessary for the
City Council to designate city officials who will be authorized to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other
orders on all City of North Pole accounts; and

WHEREAS, it is prudent for the City to seek financial services that safeguard the financial resources of
the City providing the highest level of service at the most affordable cost and best interest rates.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following city officials are hereby designated and
authorized to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other orders on behalf of the City of North Pole. This
authority will remain in effect until revoked in writing.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the city officials listed below are authorized to receive information
pertaining only to deposits, balances, items paid or items returned on City accounts. This authority will
remain in effect until revoked in writing.
Bryce J. Ward

Santa Claus

Avery Thompson
Thomas R. McGhee
Douglas Isaacson

B. Kevin McCarthy
David Skipps

Judy L. Binkley

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council of the City of North Pole,
Alaska this 19" day of June, 2017.

BRYCE J. WARD, Mayor

ATTEST: PASSED

Yes:
No: 0
Absent: 0

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk

City of North Pole
Resolution 17-13 Page 1
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